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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997
.Verbatim Proceedings of the Public
Forum of the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission in the matter of Northeast Utilities,
Millstone Units 1, 2 and 3, held March 18, 1997, at
7:00 P.M., at the Waterford Town Hall, 15 Rope Ferry

Road, Waterford, Connecticut.

MR. WAYNE LANNING: Good evening, ladies
and gentlemen. Welcome. My name is Wayne Lanning.
I'm Deputy Director for Inspections in the Special
Projects Office.

This 1is a meeting between the NRC and
you, the members of the public. This meeting is a
continuation of our efforts to keep you informed about
what NRC is doing at Millstone and some results that
were achieved and also to solicit your participation in
some of the process. Tonight we’'re looking for your
input on the selection of the Independent Corrective
Action Verification contract at Unit 2. I’1l say more
about that later.
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997

We have a very simple agenda tonight.
I'll ask the directors for comments. Jacque Durr, who
is Branch Chief, will talk about leasing inspection
activities. Then Gene Imbro will talk about the
selection of the ICAVP contract at Unit 2, give you the
status of the ICAVP activities. And Phil McKee will
talk to wus a little bit about what we heard today
concerning NU’s Employee Concerns Program and the
selection of the contractor and some relief from the
order. Then, finally, we’ll have our general Question-
and-answer session.

Before I introduce the NRC staff
tonight, I want to talk a little bit about -- I've got
one administrative item I want to talk about. In
response to a request, I'm going to take questions, as
we did in the last meeting, after each topic or each
agenda item. But I need to ask you to help us out and
try to keep focused on the agenda topic.

It’s important to those of us -- those

of you who have come here tonight who want to talk

about a specific topic, that we make that time
available for you to answer -- to ask questions about
that topic.

So we’'re going to once again limit the
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997

discussions just to that topic and really ask for your
cooperation until the end. And then if -- after we’ve
covered the agenda topics, we’ll then have the general
question-and-answer session at the end and there’s no
holds barred. You can ask any question or provide any
comment that you like.

Okay. To my immediate left is Dr. Bill
Travers. He’'s the Director of the Special Projects
Office. To his left is Gene Imbro, who is the Deputy
Director for Independent Corrective Action Process
oversight. Next to him is Jacque Durr, the Branch
Chief for Inspections. On my immediate right is Phil
McKee, who is the Deputy Director for Licensirg. Next
to him is Ellen Pastis, who is overseeing the Employee
Concerns oversgight activities.

This meeting is being recorded, for your
infornation, and that’s why you need to speak into a
microphone at the appropriate time.

Let me share with you some of the
highlights from the meeting we had this afternoon with
Northeast Utilities. 1I’1l just summarize what I think
are the important items that came out of that meeting.

First, there’'s another change to the
schedule and the approach. NU informed us today that
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they have identified Unit 3 as a lead plant for
restart. They are also the lead plant for doing the
Indepen‘ent Corrective Action Verification Process.

And the schedules for the other two
units are being evaluated. And they expect to be in a
position to share those with us in a couple of weeks.
But it is a change and it says something about schedule
slippage there.

Each unit provided us status of their
activities toward recovery and toward restart. Unit 3
appeared to be meeting most of their schedule
milestones. And as I mentioned, they’'re the first to
be ready for the Independent Corrective Action
Verification Process.

Unit 2, in addition, gave us a status.
They talked about the selection of their contractor.
And as I mentioned, Gene Imbrc will talk more about
that today.

Unit 1, they appear to be ahead of the
other two units in terms of modifications that have to
be done prior to restart.

Overall, we talked a little bit about
the corrective action program process. I think it’s
fair to summarize that in a single word, broken. They
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997
have just instituted a procedure to improve the
corrective action process. They still have a lot of
work to do to demonstrate that they have affected some
corrective action processes there.

Mr. Gable gave us a discussion of the
Northeast Employee Concerns Program and the contractor
today. And Phil McKee will talk more about that this
evening.

With that, do we have anything else?
Okay . With that, we’ll let Jacque Durr talk about the
inspection activities.

MR. JACQUE DURR: Good evening. I see
some new faces here. Let me give you a brief overview
of our inspection program because I'm sure not
everybody is familiar wit it.

The NRC has assigned Millstone normally
six inspectors, two for each unit, a Senior Resident
Inspector and a Resident Inspector. And if I can draw
an analogy between our inspectors and the medical
profession, our Senior Residents and Resident
Inspectors are general practitioners, if you will. And
in the region we have to support them specialists in
specific areas of mechanical engineering or electrical
engineering, that kind of thing.
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997

So the six inspectors that are normally
at Millstone 1, 2 and 3 do inspections and write
inspections reports normally every six to eight weeks.
And I'm sure that most of you haven’'t had the
opportunity to read the reports because they generally
run the length of 80 to 90 pages and they’'re probably
dry as dust to the uninitiated.

But let me give you 2 brief overview of
what came out of our last set of inspections. The
cover letter -- for those of you that are not familiar,
when we find an issue that does not meet a regulatory
requirement -- and regulatory requirements are things
like the license that we issue. The things that are in
that license and the technical specifications which is
appended to that are requirements. They have to comply
with those. The Code of Federal Regulations are
requirements.

And in the case of Millstone, we’ve
issued two sets, two orders, one for the Employees
Concerns Program and one for the Independent
Verification Program. Those are requirements. So, by
law, they must comply and, if they don’t, then we can
take legal action.

So this report discusses several
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997
violations. We note that in this report most of those
viclations are not of recent vintage. That is they
were things that occurred in the past, have just been
identified and brought to light. So they’re not recent
events.

And I would also say are imsues that
appear to be recurrent, significant challenge to
management is the resolution of identified deficiencies
in a timely mann~r. And that is essentially they have
found things -- they found a 1lot of things. And
because they found so many things, they haven’t been
able to properly disposition in a timely manner.

They are required to report to wus
certain things under the Code of Federal Regulations.
And so that’s what we’'re really telling them; is that
they need to disposition those things in a timely
fashion so they can ensure that they meet the reporting
requirements because there's a time clock on those
things.

And it also mentioned a little progress
in implementing corrective actions for the enforcement
actions listed on our 11/13/96 letter.

I want to give you a brief overview of
what these viclations are. And if you have any
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HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS
MARCH 18, 1997
questions, I'll be happy to answer them.

First of all, we issued in this report
three violations. We issued a violation concerning
security. It was unauthorized entry into the technical
area. What really occurred was somebody was -- that
worked at the site was laid off, came back. They
thought their badge was still good, tried to enter the
area. One of her co-workers assisted her to enter on
her badge, which is illegal. And consequently, they
were cited for that because it’s an unauthorized entry.

K technical specification violation
dealing with organizational changes. Because of the
major management changes that have taken place within
Northeast Utilities in the last year, they have made
assignments to the site and restructured the
organization. And there are certain positions within
the organization that are defined in this license that
we’'re talking about, like the Executive Vice President,
which is the Chief Nuclear Officer, and then the Senior
Vice President for the site. Those positions were not
either filled or they were more or less abolisheu for
some period of time. And they are listed in the
technical specifications. They must comply or change -
- get an amendment to the license.
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And lastly, violations identified
associated with failure to calibrate an ionization
chamber used to monitor vermiluminescent dosimeter dose
rates.

Then we also issued what we call
apparent violations. And the reason we call them
apparent violations is they rise to a level that
potentially has what we call escalated enforcement.
And the escalated enforcement means sanctions from the
NRC, such as civil penalties, may be associated with
them.

So we call these apparent violations
because generally what we do is have an enforcement
conference such as we had back in December with the
utility where some 60 to 70 violations were discussed
and were in the current process for issue. So these
were also called apparent violations.

And one of them was Unit 1, failure to
report issues to the NRC promptly. And that’s what the
reporting requirements that we were talking about
earlier where they have to report within a timely
fashion. And we found at least five instances where
that did not occur.

Unit 1 again, failed to staff the
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Millstone Unit 1 Director’s position with a qualified
individual, contrary to technical specifications. The
Unit Director has to have certain qualifications. And
we found in this particular car: that that -- that he
didn’t have it.

Unit 1 agaia, failed to perform a 50.59
evaluation for the emergr:ncy -- air start system, check
valves that had the internals removed. Now, 50.59 is
kind of what this Independent Corrective Action
Verification Program is all about.

The wutility -- the regulations say that
you can make changes to the facility as long as it
doesn’t violate certain things. As long as it doesn’t
require a change to the technical specification, they
can do it and it doesn’t involve an under-review safety
questions. They can make changes and they don’t have
to tell wus, except once a year when they send in a
listing of these changes that they’ve made.

What we found was they had made a change
and they didn’t do it with this 50.59 review. They
didn‘t do the safety evaluation to determine whether
they could make the change or not.

And, lastly, at Unit 1, inaccurate
information regarding the completion of --8913 issues.
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We found in locations -- in fact, it’s in the
enforcement conference that we had back in December.
There have been numerous occasions where we’ve found
that the wutility had provided us with inaccurate
information.

One of the cornerstones of the
regulatory process is you have to be able to trust the
utility and you have to be able to trust the
information that they provide you because, as we’'ve
gaid in the past and still remains true, we have -- we
don‘t have enough resources to inspect everything,
Ergo, there has to be a certain amount of trust.

And so any time that we find that
they’ve provided us with inaccurate information, we're
going to issue a violation.

We found that at Unit 2 corrective
actions were incomplete for a flash main bearing on the
emergency diesel generator because of insufficient
lubrication. Flash, for those of you who are
mechanics, it’s a light bearing. The bearing had
insufficient lubrication because of the way they
initially started the engine. And it would start up
without proper lubrication and it caused the bearings
to whiten this piece.
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They knew about it before and didn’'t
really take the appropriate corrective actions. And
they started the engine a month later and almost
totally destroyed it. So we'’ve given them a violation
for that.

Unit 3 had inadequate response to the
NRC in Information Note CD-24, generic letter 9150, and
that resulted -- we sent out information notices
telling the wutilities that we’'ve identified what we
call generic issues that apply to more than one plant.
It’s kind of 1like a recall notice for your car.
General Motors figures out that the air bags are
deficient and they’ll send out a recall notice.

Well, we send out these notices to the
utility to put them -- to advise that there are
deficient conditions and they need to take a look at
these things to make sure it doesn’t apply to their
plant.

Well, we told them about these air
valves and a potential deficiency with them and they
didn’'t take the proper corrective acc:on, to put the
proper corrective actions. And this resulted in 48
solar -- operated valves being potentially subjected to

air pressure greater that their design rating.

POST REPORTING SERVICE
HAMDEN, CT (B00) 262-4102




11960

FORM LASERBOND 2 @ PENGAD - 1200831 4380

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
1%
20
21
22
23

24

14
HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS

MARCH 18, 1997

Unit 1 violation again, apparent
violation, and it's the event response team performed
in response to quality assessment services audit was
narrowly focused and lacked substance. When they --
the Code of Federal Regulations requires that you
identify -- if you identify a deficient condition,
something that’s not appropriate, it requires that you
evaluate it and take appropriate action to ensure that
it doesn’t recur. The root cause analyses and these
kinds of things. We found that they really didn‘t do a
good job on that.

Another Unit 1 apparent violation was --
we use acronyms left and right. IGSCC. Because it’'s a
mouthful. It's inner granular stress corrosion
cracking. The reactor coolant pressure boundary piping
is made out of stainless steel in some cases.
Stainless steel, contrary to popular belief, is not
iwpervious to everything and it will develop a crack
mechanism that can drive all the way through the pipe
wall. And these are very thick pipe walls, up to an
inch thick. And the piping in Millstone Unit 1 is said
to hold inner granule stress corrosion cracking.

The NRC and the industry identified this
back in the 70’'s. And most reactors in the United
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States have replaced that piping. Millstone is one of
the few, two -- one of two that I know of that has not
replaced that piping and they’'re on an accelerated
program to do examirnations to that piping.

We found that they have done the
examinations as they were directed to and they
identified what we call indicetions in that piping.
And they talked themselves out of the fact that it was
cracked and they thought it was what we call john-drew
or some other condition by doing an additional
examination when, in reality, it was cracking. So
we’'ve cited them for that.

And, lastly, Unit 1, more inaccurate
information regarding the status of the ratlace
facility. They told -- they sent us a letter and they
said, "We did a root cause analysis back in December"
and we found out that they really hadn’‘t done a root
cause analysis until January. But they sent us a
letter in December that said that they’d done it. So
it’s obvious that it couldn’t have been true at the
time.

Now, lastly, let me discuss -- we've
issued a confirmatory action letter, among the list of
things that we have. But a confirmatory action letter
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is one notch below kind of issuing an order which has
status.

A confirmatory action letter is where
you’ve identified a situation that doesn’t -- hasn’t
quite risen to a level where we can issue an order.
But we send a letter back to the utility to establish
on the docket commitments that they make that we will
hold them to.

Now, behind every confirmatory action
letter, if they don’t comply with that, there’s the
potential that we would issue an order. So -- and the
confirmatory action letter back in December -- the
utility periodically sends their licensed operators
through training and they also send them through for an
operator to become a Senior Reactor Operator. He has
to go take an examination. And the NRC monitors these
examinations.

Back in December, the Unit 1 sent seven,
I think it was, operators for upgrade to Senior Reactor
Operator and six of the seven failed the examination.
And that ~-- the utility did an event response team to
find out what happened. What went wrong? And in doing
s0, that event response team identified that the
information that was supplied to the agency on the
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applications was incomplete and, in some cases,
inaccurate.

Now, what had happened -- let me give
you an example. You’re supposed to have 512 hours of
on-the-job training under the supervision as part of
that upgrade training. Well, some people had 504
hours. They’d miscounted the hours. They're supposed
to have five manipulations of reactivity. That's
actually manipulating the reactor itself.

There was some question about how they
counted each one of those manipulations and whether
some of them were double-counted, if you will.

So there’s questions concerning just how
accurate that information was and are these people
truly qualified. So the wutilities expanded their
investigation of this to see how widespread it was.
They’'ve also identified it not only affected Millstone
1, 2 and 3, but Haddam Neck because it’‘s all part of
the same training program. And they withdrew the
applications for the seven reactor operators that were
to be upgraded.

Now in that coufirmatory action letter
there are nine stated commitments that we essentially
wrote back to them. One, they will submit a complete

POST REPORTING SERVICE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102




11/96D

FORM ASER BOND & @ PENGAD - 18008316985

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

18
HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS

MARCH 18, 1997

corrective action plan, including a schedule for
addressing each of the identified IRT, inspection
response team, witnesses and a review of the extent of
the problems and root causes for the training area to
the NRC staff by April 2, 1997 as part of the
corrective action plan, clearly defining roles and
responsibilities for completing NRC 398. That’s the
form that they supplied the inaccurate information on.

Complete corrective actions for the
Millstone 1 LOIT, which is the 1license to operator
initial training When you want to become a reactor
operator, there’s initial training that you have to go
through. LOUT, which is license to operator upgrade
training. That’'s if you want to become, once you’'re a
reactor operator and you want to become a Senior
Reactor Operator, ycu get an upgrade training.

Complete corrective actions for

Millstone 1 LOIT and LOUT program prior to restarting

respective classes. So before they do any more
training.

Complete corrective actions for
Millstone 2 LOIT -- that’s the initial training --

prior to restarting LOIT training classes.

Complete corrective actions for
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Millstone Unit 3 LOIT and LOUT programs prior to NRC
examinations of the current class.

Conduct a thorough review of the
Millstone 3 LOIT program against the accredited program
requirements prior to submittal of the license
application to the NRC.

Six, forward the scope of NRC Form 396
medical certifications process review and its expected
completion dates for Millstone 1, 2 and 3 and Haddam
Neck, Plan A, April 2, 1997.

Seven, submit the results of the HNP
data review -- acronyms again -- of the LOIT, LOUT
programs to the NRC by April 2, 1997.

Eight, submit the results of initial
reviews of additional classes on all the units to the
NRC by March 15, 1997.

And, nine, complete specific reviews of
the HNP and LOIT license operator requalification
training program by April 4, 1997.

So that’s what we found. They’'re in the
process of completing these actions. And there will be
more to come on that.

Okay . Do you want to take gquestions
now?
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MR. LANNING: Questions? Anybody have

questions? Yes.

MR. DON DELCORE: Do you want me to sit
there?

MR. LANNING : Please. Use the
microphone.

MR. DELCORE: I presume we were talking
about Inspection Report 9609.

MR. DURR: That'’s correct.

MR. DELCORE: And you characterized
three violations?

MR. DURR: Yes.

MR. DELCORE: But, in fact, there were
about ten. Correct? There were seven that weren’'t --

MR. DURR: There's -~

MR. DELCORE: That were not issued
notice of violations.

MR. DURR: There was three violations
and seven apparent violations, yes.

MR. DELCORE: Well, apparent violations
are still violations, though. Right?

MR. DURR: Yes. But they are pre -- a
final decision has not been rendered on them at this

point in time. 8o what it means is that the NRC will
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take under advisement these issues and they may --
upper management still has the prerogative of making a
determination of whether there are, in fact, violations
or not. And then additional action will be issued on
that. So that’s why they’'re called, quote, "apparent
violations" vice a violation. We differentiate.

MR. DELCORE: No. I understand that.
But they apparently were put back with another
enforcement conference, from what I could read here.

MR. DURR: Yes. The December -- that'’s
correct. Some of those issues will be rolled into the
December S5 enforcement package where we have like 60 or
70 1issues. These are examples of the same kind of
thing. And so right now, the management is under
consideration of tying these things into that same
packagea.

MR. DELCORE: For adjudging how much
civil penalty or how much --

MR. DURR: Right. That’s correct.

MR. DELCORE: Okay . Okay . Let’'s go
back to the violations that you did document. It looks
like two of them were violations of procedures. And
I'm sure that, at least from my recollecticn of reading
at least this year’s inspection reports, that’s not the
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first time that they’ve had a violation of their
Technical Specification 6.8.1 and your Regulatory Guide
1.33.

MR. DURR: That’'s correct.

MR. DELCORE: Why were they issued a
Level 47

MR. DURR: Why were they -- I'm sorry.
Why were they issued a Level 4?

MR. DELCORE: Yes. Yes. They had -- in
this particular inspection report, they had two
violations of failure to follow a procedure that I
could see. And it’'s probably not less than the tenth

or twentieth time this year that they’ve not followed a

procedure.

MR. DURR: Well, I don’'t --

MR. DELCORE: Yet, they’ve been issued a
Level 4.

MR. DURR: There haven’'t been 10 or 20
in 1997.

MR. DELCORE: No?

MR. DURR: Not in 1997. Maybe 19 -~

MR. DELCORE: No. 19%6. Yes.

MR. DURR: 1997 has --

MR. DELCORE: Well, this is a 1996
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report.
MR, DURR: That'’s correct.

MR. DELCORE: Okay. So why wouldn’t you

not accelerate those?

MR. DURR: Because they -- what you do
is -- the process is -- let me explain to everybody the
process. Once -- once we determine that it's a

violation, then you have tc go through the NRC
enforcement policy to determine whether it’s a Level 4,
3, 2, 1, 1 being the most severe and Level 4 being the
least severe, or even less than that is a non-cited
violation which we can identify a violation whirh we
don’t take any action on because it’s really -- I don’t
know how else to characterize it, but --

Once we get into that process, it’s run
through the criteria in the enforcement policy which is
in what we call a nuke record which is a document that
we issue, 1600, which provides the basis for how we
will assess the severity level of these penalties.

And so these rose in management’s
judgment to a Level 4 severity.

MR. DELCORE: I was just curious bow you
go to that when we've had so many technical
specification failure to follow procedure violations
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this year. In other words, what you told me before we
you took these seven apparent violations and you put
them in with the previous enforcement conference and
then you’re going to weigh them as to what the total
civil penalty will be or what level violation.

MR. DURR: Yes.

MR. DELCORE: But 1looking back at the
last year, at the 10 or 20 that we had, we’'re not doing
that. I wonder why that is.

MR. DURR: Looking back --

MR. DELCORE: Well, 1looking back at the
10 or 20 wviolations that we’ve had of procedures this
year, we're not putting them in a pool and deciding
maybe we should accelerate it to a Level 3 to maybe
send a message that we don‘'t want them to violate
procedures any more.

MR. DURR: Well, I think -- I think if
you look at the enforcement package that we discussed
on December 5, that message is in there. It's in that
package.

MR. DELCORE: Not following procedures?

MR. DURR: Right. Yes. The report
cited violations in there, yes.

MR. DELCORE: Then why wouldn’'t these be
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included in that package, tco, then?

MR. DURR: Because we didn’t believe --
management didn‘t believe that they rose “o that level
that they warranted an escalated enforcement .

MR. DELCORE: I'm just trying to point
out the variations that we see in these inspection
reports almost constantly.

MR. LANNING: Jacque, let me add to the
discussion here. The enforcement policy which contains
our guidance for escalating, for example, 4's to 3's
can be done. But it’s wusually -- it’s complex. But,
simply stated, it has to be essentially the same root
causes. In other words, there are many ways to violate
procedures, for example. And so in order to escalate
several 4’'s into a 3, you need the same root cause
essentially is part of the guidance.

And so in the judgment of the
enforcement panel, these really didn’'t rise to that
occasion, had different root causes or they were just
violations of failure to follow procedures.

MR. DELCORE: It almost seems like, to
me, that somebody 1is not going back and looking at
them. That’'s what it really locks like to me.

MR. LANNING: I can assure you as part
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of the enforcement panel we go back and 1look at
previous history.

ME. DELCORE: Next meeting, if we could
talk about this again, I’ll bring up the 10 or 20 that
are there and we’'ll see how closely they 1look at one
another.

Thank you.

MR. LANNING: Okay.

MR. DURR: Any other questions?

Thank you.

MR. LANNING: Okay. Mr. Imbro will now
summarize today’s discussion about the ICAVP and the
selection of the contractor at Unit 2.

MR. IMBRO: One of the things discussed
today by Mr. Kenyon was the fact that the licensee has
somewhat altered their schedule and the fact that
someone moved away from the parallel approach in some -
- in a manner and that designated Unit 3 as lead unit
for ICAVP. And the ICAVP for Unit 3 will -- the date
remains the same as previously advertised as May 8 as
of now.

Unit 1 1ICAVP was proposed to start on
April 10. But that has been -- that has been delayed.
And so no schedule has been announced yet for Unit 2
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and Unit 1 in terms of ICAVP, except that they will
follow the Unit 3 ICAVP, which again is supposed to
start on May 8.

Mr. Kenyon also stated that they still
intend to hold reasonably close to the projected dates
for restart, although they would be delayed slightly
for the units. And it’s still advertised that cne
unit, not saying which, would start probably the third
quarter of this year, in his estimation, the company’s
estimation, one would start in the fourth quarter of
this year and another would start in the first quarter
of next year. We feel that they have a lot of work to
do to get there. But, anyway, that is the schedule
that they’'re advertising right now. And, clearly, we
need to do a lot of oversight between now and then.

Again, we're not going to be driven by
that schedule necessarily. We need to do what we --
well, whit we have to do to assure that the plants,
when they are started, if they are started, are started
in a safe manner and comply with the regulations. So
if we can accomplish that within the schedule, fine.
And if we can’t, then we’ll have to revisit that.

There was -- let me, I guess, talk a
little bit about the status of selection of -- approval
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of Sergeant & Lundy for Unit 1 and Unit 3 ICAVP
contractor. As you all -- most of you have been here

before. Sergeant & Lundy is proposed to do the ICAVP

for Unit 1 and Unit 3. We’'re still evaluating the
submittal. We‘'ve asked -- wrote a letter to the
licensee, oh, probably early -- it went out earlier
this week or late last week -- asking some additional

questions on independence.

The questions focused on two primary

areas. One was the question regarding restriction of
future work. The licensee proposed that the future
work would be restricted at Millstone. We felt that

was not appropriate or not adeguite. We suggested that
Sergeant & Lundy be restricted for one year from any
work at NU after the completion of the ICAVP. So
that’'s one of the issues that the licensee needs to
respond to.

The other issue was concerning again
independence, but ownership interest. In the
information that the licensee had sent us previously,
there were statements that while Sergeant & Lundy as an
entity didn’'t own NU stock, their retirement plan may
have owned or may own NU stock, and also the thrift
savings plan that the employees invest in may own NU
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tock. And, again, the information that they had
provided was that these are managed -- the retirement
plan is managed by a trustee, so they don’t really have
control over -- Sergeant & Lundy doesn’t have control
over what’s bought and sold. But we still felt that we
needed more information as to how the money was
invested and whether or not they did own NU stock.
And, again, we’re awaiting a response on that.

So we still haven’t made a decision yet
on the approval of Sergeant & Lundy. So we’re waiting
for that information.

In terms of Unit 2, a presentation was
made on the Unit 2 ICAVP proposal by Northeast to have
Parsons do the ICAVP for Unit 2. Part of the meeting
tonight is to solicit input from you all on that.

But let me go through a little bit what
was mentioned today. Again, Unit 2 proposal for
Parsons was submitted on the docket, I believe on the
l14th of February. 1It’s been in the PDR, local PDR. So
I assume you’ve had a chance to look at that.

A couple of things that I'll go through
is that -- just to summarize what the licensee
mentioned today. Parsons has no financial interest in
NU and neither they nor their retirement plan was
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stated has a financial interest in NU or any ownership
interest in NU.

Parsons is doing no current work at NU.
But they have done previous work for the licensee.

Approximately five million dollars’ work over the last

ten years. Out of that 500 million -- or five million
-- excuse me -- five million dollars, about 460,000 of
that was nuclear-related. The rest is fossil

transmission work, you know, power lines, et cetera.

And Parsons -- to put that in context,
basically a billion dollar a year company. That’s how
much their revenue is. So it’s a small amount.

And, again, Parsons also 1is doing no
work -- they’re not connected with NRC in any way.
And, also, the team members, of course, are independent
in terms of they have not worked -- I think only one of
the proposed team members.worked for a brief period, if
I remember correctly, on Unit 1 and there was no work
on Unit 2. But that’s something we need to evaluate.
But primarily, the balance of the team, which is
roughly about 40 people, has not had any connection
with Northeast.

So that’s essentially a summary. We
asked additional Qquestions for Northeast to
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characterize some of the previous nuclear work that was
done. The dJescription in the submittal is somewhat
sketchy. And they would indicate or could indicate
that they may have -- they, Parsons, may have been
involved with some programs, for example, energy line
break and MIV’'s, I believe. 1In any case, the licensee
is going to give us additional information. Although,
they did indicate that it was more of a, I guess, a
flow chart review in that they provided guidance, I
think, as to what was typically done in the industry
rather than creating a program for the licensee,
described Fow a program would typically be created, if
I understand that correctly. So they didn’t really
create programs for the licensee to use but indicated
how programs could be constructed.

And in any —case, they’'re going to
provide additional information on that to us and then
we will further evaluate that.

So that’s kind of a synopsis of where
NRC is and where the licensee is in terms of ICAVP.

Are there any other -- any questions or
any input on the selection of Parsons?

Since you had a chance, Don, let me talk
to Paul Blanche first.
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MR. PAUL BLANCHE: Yes. I'm Paul
Blanche. I'm here speaking as a member of the public
but also because I was part of the NEAC sub-committee
reviewing the ICAVP process with respect to Sergeant &
Lundy. And I could see inconsistency here in the
evaluation criteria. And I refer to Slide -- I think
it’s 50, which is financial and organizational
independence that was presented this afternoon. Gene,
I think you just went over this.

One of the problems I had with Sergeant
& Lundy 1is that they were doing quite a bit of work,
similar work, for the NRC, similar ICAVP processes.
That was not considered a negative for Sergeant & Lundy
at least in the NRC’'s evaluation process. But now I
see the presentation this afternoon where it says
Parsons is doing no work for the NRC.

It seems to be inconsistent criteria in
the evaluation of the ICAVP contractor where in one
case, because they’'re doing no work for the NRC, well,
that’s good; in another case with Sergeant & Lundy,
they’'re doing a lot of work for the NRC, but that’s not
ment ioned. So it seems to be somewhat inconsistent
here as far as the evaluation criteria.

DR. BILL TRAVERS: Maybe I can take a
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shot at that, Paul Blanche.
MR. BLANCHE: Okay.

DR. TRAVERS: They didn‘t say that this

was evaluation criteria. I don’'t know if it was or it
wasn’t. They pointed it out. And I suspect -- and 1
don’t know -- that one of the reasons they may have

pointed this out is because in the case of Sergeant &
Lundy it has been an issue. People have raised it as
one issue of concern that we had discussed.

1 suspect -- and I was surprised to see
it on this slide as well. I was, frankly, surprised to
see the utility point this out. 1It’s our issue really
in the context of Sergeant & Lundy or anyone else doing
work for us and whether or not that should be viewed in
perspective as a conflict in any sense.

So we’'d have to ask Northeast as to
whether or not they used it as an evaluation criteria.
They didn’'t say they did in this meeting. But perhaps
they did. Ultimately, though, we have to approve the
organization. And that aspect of what they’'ve listed
on this slide is not a criteria that we have in the
order as stated.

MR. BLANCHE: You know, it just gives
the appearance that they’'re pointing out with Parsons
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that there is no conflict because Parsons is doing no
work for the NRC but, yet, there may be a conflict with
Sergeant & Lundy. That’s what I want to point out --

DR. TRAVERS: It certainly could lead
you there,

MR. BLANCHE: Okay . That was my
question. Thank you.

DR. TRAVERS: I was surprised to see it

as well.

MR. BLANCHE: Okay. Thanks.

MR. IMBRO: There were some other hands.
Don?

MS. ROSEMARY BASSILAKIS: I have a
question.

MR. IMBRO: All right. Well -- all

right. Let Mr. Delcore --

MS. BASSILAKIS: Oh. I'm sorry.

MR. IMBRO: -- have his turn and then
you can come up, Rosemary.

MR. DELCORE: Don Delcore from
Uncasville. This is with regard to the Unit 3 ICAVP
readiness that was discussed today. I'd 1like to be
sure that I have this correct. But I think at one time
we got some information when you discussed the ICAVP,

POST REPORTING SERVICE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102




11/96D

FORM LASER BOND A @ PENGAD « 18008010585

10

11
12
i3
14
15
16
27
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

HEARING RE: MILLSTONE UNITS .
MARCH 18, 1997
the configuration management program kind of drove the
whole system and that there were some Maintenance Rules
1, 2 and 3.

MR. IMBRO: Yes.

MR. DELCORE: And from that
configuration management and those maintenance rules,
we derived safety significant systems and risk
significant systems and then a combination of risk
and/or safety significance, which essentially assembled
the systems that we really needed to take a look at.

MR. IMBRO: That‘s right. The Group 1
and Group 2 systems.

MR. DELCORE: And back in the o0ld --
yes. Right. Maintenance Rules 1 and 2 systems. Back
in the old days when we first started talking about
ICAVP for Unit 3 and trying to get ready to pick a
contractor, we were talking about 83 systems.

MR. IMBRO: That’s right.

MR. DELCORE: And now we’'re talking
about 36, it looks like.

MR. IMBRO: No. Well, let me explain
that because I think I can clarify. 83 are the number
of population of Group 1 and Group 2. S0 there are 83
Group 1 and Group 2 systems. What the order said was
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that --

A VOICE: For Unit 3.

MR. 1IMBRO: For Unit 3. The order said
that the ICAVP could start when half of the Group 1
systems were finished CMP. And the licensee was
willing to attest that they identified all the
problems. So the discovery phase was done.

There are roughly 36 or some-odd, 37,
Group 1 systems. So the number that you heard today,
18 --

MR. DELCORE: Right.

MR. 1IMBRO: -- was half. So that wculd
say at that point we would select or we could select up
to three systems to have the ICAVP start. But we
wouldn’t select the last system, the last of the four.
But that’s where the 18 came from, was half of the
Group 1 systems for Unit 3.

MR. DELCORE: I'm not asking where the
18 came from. I understand that. What I’'m confused
about is what happened to the remainder of the
difference between the 36, which was the total 100
percent of the 18, and the original 83, which were
considered risk -- safety or risk significant systems
that everybody wanted to take a look at. It looks to
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me like we’ve whittled down the original 83 systems to
36, Gene.

MR. IMBRO: That’s our understanding is
that the licensee is complete the CMP in the same
fachion for the 83 systems as they will for the 18 to
start the ICAVP. In fact, our process will assure it
because we’'re going to not pick the last system for
ICAVP review until they have completed all 83 systems.

MR. DELCORE: So what you’re saying to
me is that they’re all systems that need to be looked
at in terms of risk or safety significance. But we’'re
only going to look at those in Maintenance Group 1,
which total about 36, and we’'re going to look at -- as
soon as they have 50 percent ready, we’'re going to look
at three of those.

MR, IMBRO: We could look at up to three
of those or even none, depending on -- if they weren’t
the systems that we felt were appropriate for the ICAVP
to look at in terms of, you know, very small-scope
systems, for example, we may delay starting the ICAVP
until they provided an adequate sample for us to choose
from.

MR. DELCORE: Lat’s say out of the 36
that you don’‘t have an adequate sample that you feel is
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there. Are you going to go to the other 40-some-odd?

MR. IMBRO: We’d probably select some of
the systems from the Group 2 systems anyway. So the
answer is probably yes. But I believe that from the 36
Group 1 systems, some of those are reasonable ones to
choose.

MR. DELCORE: Then I'm still confused as
to why we eliminated the Group 2 systems?

MR. IMBRO: Well, we didn’t. I mean I'm
just saying that the ICAVP can start when half of the
Group 1 systems are done, at the earliest.

MR. DELCORE: Okay.

MR. IMBRO: Now, we haven’'t really
eliminated the rest of the systems. In fact --

MR. DELCORE: That I understand.

MR. IMBRO: -- when we select the last
system, it will probably be one of the others.

MR. DELCORE: Okay. Then I understand.
What I was trying to find out is whether we’'re still
looking at 83 systems.

MR. IMBRO: Yes, we are.

MR. DELCORE: Okay.

MR. IMBRO: Yes.

MR. DELCORE: So we’'re still doing some
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four percent of the total? In other words, you guys
are going to look at two, one of which will be one of
the four ICAVP's --

MR. IMBRO: One which they look at, one
they don‘t lcok at. <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>